

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 4, 2024 to March 21, 2025

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
March 25, 2025 to June 25, 2025

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NONEMERGENCY LAWS IS
JUNE 20, 2025

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NONEMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 24, 2025

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2025

collect a debt for medical expenses against a consumer who has been determined to be qualified for ~~free or~~ charity care under ~~guidelines adopted pursuant to~~ Title 22, section ~~4716~~ 1716-A or against a consumer who would have been determined to be qualified for ~~free or~~ charity care under ~~guidelines adopted pursuant to~~ Title 22, section ~~4716~~ 1716-A but did not apply for good cause. If the notification is provided to a debt collector, the debt collector shall suspend collection efforts until the creditor has notified the debt collector and the consumer that the consumer is not qualified for ~~free or~~ charity care and, in that case, the debt collector may renew debt collection efforts.

Sec. 6. Department of Health and Human Services to adopt rules. By June 30, 2026, the Department of Health and Human Services shall adopt rules pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 22, section 1716-A, subsection 13 to implement the requirements of this Act. The rules must include a provision limiting a patient's right to request an administrative hearing to within 60 days after the date of the written notification of the action under section 1716-A that the patient wishes to appeal.

Sec. 7. Appropriations and allocations. The following appropriations and allocations are made.

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF

Division of Licensing and Certification Z036

Initiative: Establishes one Comprehensive Health Planner II position, effective July 1, 2026, to develop program applications and implement the department's enforcement requirements for charity care and other financial assistance programs required of hospitals, including investigating patient complaints, taking corrective actions and providing staff support for any necessary legal action. The initiative also provides funding for related All Other costs.

GENERAL FUND	2025-26	2026-27
POSITIONS -	0.000	1.000
LEGISLATIVE COUNT		
Personal Services	\$0	\$37,721
All Other	\$0	\$2,467
GENERAL FUND TOTAL	\$0	\$40,188
OTHER SPECIAL	2025-26	2026-27
REVENUE FUNDS		
Personal Services	\$0	\$73,223
All Other	\$0	\$6,599
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE	\$0	\$79,822
FUNDS TOTAL		

Sec. 8. Effective date. This Act takes effect July 1, 2026.

Effective July 1, 2026.

CHAPTER 489

S.P. 758 - L.D. 1951

An Act to Promote Food Processing and Manufacturing Facility Expansion and Create Jobs

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§1, ¶H, as enacted by PL 2019, c. 386, §2, is repealed.

Sec. 2. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§1, ¶J, as enacted by PL 2019, c. 386, §2, is amended by repealing subparagraph (1).

Sec. 3. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§1, ¶J, as enacted by PL 2019, c. 386, §2, is amended by amending subparagraph (4) to read:

(4) The applicant employs or will employ ~~upon~~ within 12 months of the start-up of the facility at least 40 full-time employees based in the State; and

Sec. 4. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§1, ¶J, as enacted by PL 2019, c. 386, §2, is amended by amending subparagraph (5) to read:

(5) The annual income derived from employment with the applicant of at least 75% of the applicant's employees who have been employed by the applicant for at least 12 months exceeds the most recent annual per capita personal income in the county in which the facility is located.

Sec. 5. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§1, ¶K, as amended by PL 2019, c. 659, Pt. H, §2, is further amended to read:

K. "Qualified investment" means an expenditure of at least \$35,000,000 to design, permit, construct, modify, equip or expand the applicant's facility in the State. The expenditures of a qualified applicant and other entities, whether or not incorporated, that are part of a single business enterprise must be aggregated to determine whether a qualified investment has been made. A qualified investment does not include an expenditure made prior to April 1, 2019 or after December 31, ~~2024~~ 2027.

Sec. 6. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§2, ¶E, as amended by PL 2019, c. 659, Pt. H, §4, is further amended to read:

E. A certified applicant shall submit an application to the commissioner for a certificate of completion. If the commissioner determines that the certified applicant has made a qualified investment and determines that, at the time the application for a cer-

tificate of completion is submitted, the certified applicant is itself, or is the parent or subsidiary of, an entity that satisfies all of the criteria in subsection 1, paragraph J, ~~subparagraphs (1) and (5)~~; the commissioner shall issue a certificate of completion to the certified applicant as soon as is practical. The certificate of completion must state the amount of qualified investment made by the certified applicant.

Sec. 7. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2019, c. 659, Pt. H, §§3 and 4, is further amended by amending the first blocked paragraph to read:

The commissioner may not issue certificates of approval under this subsection that total, in the aggregate, more than ~~\$100,000,000~~ \$200,000,000 of qualified investment or any individual certificate of approval for more than ~~\$85,000,000~~ \$100,000,000 of qualified investment.

Sec. 8. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§3, ¶A, as enacted by PL 2019, c. 386, §2, is amended to read:

A. Subject to the limitations under paragraph B, beginning with the first full tax year after the certified applicant has been issued a certificate of completion under subsection 2, paragraph E or the tax year beginning on January 1, 2022, whichever is later, and for each of the following 19 tax years, a certified applicant is allowed a credit against the tax due under this Part for the taxable year in an amount equal to 1.8% of the certified applicant's qualified investment, except that, for a tax year beginning on or after January 1, 2027, a certified applicant is allowed a credit against the tax due under this Part for the taxable year in an amount equal to 2% of the certified applicant's qualified investment. A certified applicant may not claim a credit under this subsection for more than 20 years. If the certified applicant is a pass-through entity, the owner or owners of the certified applicant are allowed the credit. The credit allowed under this paragraph is refundable.

Sec. 9. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§3, ¶B, as amended by PL 2019, c. 659, Pt. H, §5, is further amended by repealing subparagraph (2).

Sec. 10. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§3, ¶B, as amended by PL 2019, c. 659, Pt. H, §5, is further amended by repealing subparagraph (4), division (a).

Sec. 11. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§3, ¶B, as amended by PL 2019, c. 659, Pt. H, §5, is further amended by amending subparagraph (4), division (c) to read:

(c) The annual income derived from employment with the certified applicant of at least 75% of the certified applicant's employees who have been employed by the

certified applicant for at least 12 months exceeds the most recent annual per capita personal income in the county in which the facility is located.

Sec. 12. 36 MRSA §5219-VV, sub-§5, ¶A, as amended by PL 2019, c. 607, Pt. C, §7 and c. 659, Pt. H, §6, is further amended to read:

A. On or before March 1st of each year, a certified applicant shall file a report with the commissioner for the tax year ending during the immediately preceding calendar year, referred to in this subsection as "the report year," containing year. The report must include, at a minimum, metrics and other progress measures, including the following information:

- (1) The number of full-time employees based in the State of the certified applicant on the last day of the report year; ~~and~~
- (2) The incremental amount of qualified investment made in the report year;
- (3) The total number of full-time employees based in the State in the report year;
- (4) The number of jobs offered by the certified applicant during the report year above the base level of employment; and
- (5) The number of jobs that have been added since the day the certificate of approval was issued.

The commissioner may prescribe forms for the annual report described in this paragraph. The commissioner shall provide copies of the report to the assessor, to the Office of Program Evaluation and Government Accountability and to the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over taxation matters at the time the report is received.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 490 H.P. 1312 - L.D. 1968

An Act to Amend the Laws Regarding Legislative Reimbursement

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 3 MRSA §2, 4th ¶, as amended by PL 2023, c. 2, §3, is further amended to read:

Except as provided in this section, each member of the Senate and House of Representatives is entitled to the travel-related expenses of a meal allowance in the amount of \$50, or a higher amount set by the Legislative